
Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny 
Panel to be held as follows for the transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Monday, 18 March 2019

TIME: 2.00 pm

VENUE: Committee Room 2, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Apologies 

2  Declarations of Interest 

3  Minutes of meeting held on 18 March 2019 and matters arising (Pages 1 - 6)

4  Transformation Programme - Regulatory Services Update 
(presentation) 

5  Waste Collection In Cab Technology (presentation) 

6  Greater Manchester Plastic Pledge (Pages 7 - 10)

7  Work Programme 2019/20 (Pages 11 - 18)

8  Any other business 

9  Next Meeting - Monday, 20th May 2019 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3013
Mike Relph Senior Democratic Services Adviser E-Mail: mike.relph@salford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



COMMUNITY AND NEIGHBOURHOODS SCRUTINY PANEL

18th February 2019

Meeting commenced: 2.00 p.m.
“                  ended: 4:00 p.m.

PRESENT: Councillor Karen Garrido - in the Chair

Councillors Fletcher, Hunt, McCusker, McIntyre, Ryan, Turner, Joan 
Walsh, Warner and Wheeler

OFFICERS: David Seager - Assistant Director, Operational and Community 
    Services

John Wooderson - Head of Urban Renewal
Chris Wilkinson - Lead Practitioner 
Mike Relph - Senior Democratic Services Adviser

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

An apology for absence was submitted on behalf of Councillors John Mullen.

Best wishes were also expressed to Councillor Mullen for a speedy return to health.

2. MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

The minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 21st January, 2019, were agreed as 
a correct record.

3. LIBRARY IMPLEMENTATION UPDATE
(Previous Minute 4 - 21 January 2019)

The Chief Executive for Salford Community Leisure (SCL) submitted a report which 
provided an update in relation to the various elements of the Library Implementation 
Plan 2017/18

Members raised issues and commented on, and noted them, as follows:-

(a) In terms of unmanned libraries, what contingencies were put in place for people 
who suffered any form of visual impairment, so as to enable them to gain access and 
use the services available?

(b) What were the anticipated timescales for the introduction of the “click and collect” 
service at Beesley Green Community Centre?

(c) Reference was made to the intention to work with the Worsley Village Community 
Association to change the balance of community involvement and library staff at 
Worsley Village Library. Particular mention was made to the phasing in of a total of 
20 hours weekly, where the library would be manned solely by the Community 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Association and this was questioned, as volunteers were already exceeding this 
target figure. The associated issues of volunteers being unable to process new 
memberships, or use the photocopier, on the occasions when SCL Library staff were 
not present, were also raised.

(d) The possible opportunities the selling books in libraries presented.

RESOLVED: (1) THAT the report, be noted.

(2) THAT The Chief Executive for Salford Community Leisure be asked 
to provide a response to the issues raised in (a), (b), (c) and (d) above.

4. PLACE DIRECTORATE BUSINESS PLAN 2018/19 QUARTERLY UPDATE

David Seager gave a presentation which provided both an overview and update on 
the Place Directorate Business Plan 2018/19 and which focussed on the following 
issues/themes:-

 Service priorities
 Salford Growth - context
 Place Revenue Budget
 Reduction of Place expenditure in past five years
 Business Plan Quarter 3 Update
 Place Annual Outputs
 Cultural Outputs 

Members raised issues and commented on, and noted them, as follows:-

(a) Concerns were raised regarding accessibility issues in parks particularly disabled 
people, including the use of  play equipment and picnic tables. These access isues 
often existed despite some parks having “Green Flag” status. These concerns were 
noted and in reference to “Green Flag” it was reported this was a national award, but 
perhaps it did not put an appropriate emphasis on disabled access as part of its 
assessment criteria.

(b) What progress being made with the development of the Salford Street Charter? It 
was indicated two pilot projects were currently being undertaken and progress on 
these, together with the intended long term plans, could be submitted to a future 
meeting.

(c) What were the likely impact of H.M. Government’s proposals for the recycling of 
plastic bottles, on Salford and Greater Manchester’s own waste recycling schemes 
and targets? It was inevitable there would have an impact and there needed to be 
further consideration of the proposals before implementation.

(d) Clarification and further information, was provided with regard to support provided 
in terms of energy efficiency measures in domestic dwellings and making 
adaptations to elderly persons homes.

Page 2



(e) In response to a question, it was reported that, the demand for the school meals 
service continued to grow.

(f) Reference was made to frequent difficulties in accessing Salford City Council 
services via the call centre. These were issues was recognised and were currently 
being addressed. 

(g) What impact had the in cab technology in terms of the waste collection service? 
There had been a positive impact but as the use of the technology was at an early 
stage, a full evaluation of these could not be effectively measured as yet.

RESOLVED:   (1) THAT the contents of the presentation be noted.

  (2) THAT a further year end update on the Business Plan 2018/19 be 
provided in provisionally May/June 2019.

  
5. GREATER MANCHESTER TAXI POLICY - UPDATE/PROGRESS

John Wooderson gave a presentation, which provided an overview and update on 
progress with regard to the development/introduction of common minimum standards 
for taxi and private hire across Greater Manchester and which focussed on the 
following issues/themes:-

 Overview
 Salford - Modernisation/online services
 Refocus of service
 Enforcement and investigations 
 Salford Policy Development
 Impacts and Influencers - National Agenda
 Greater Manchester Agenda
 Review of fees
 Next steps

Members raised issues and commented on, and noted them, as follows:-

(a) It was generally agreed the introduction of a standard and consistent approach to 
taxi and private hire licensing across Greater Manchester was to be welcomed.

(b) In response to a question, it was indicated that access to the licensing service by 
the trade was by online means.

(c) Details were provided of the medical checks made on drivers.

(d) What impact the introduction of the proposed more vigorous national standards 
for licensing would have on Salford? In the main there would be no impact, as these 
standards were ones which already adopted by Salford city Council.

(e) Further details were provided of the existing legislation which allowed a holder of 
Hackney carriage licence, issued by another local authority, to operate in other local 
authority area as a private hire driver. 

Page 3



(f) Was there a limit on the number of Hackney Carriage vehicles which were 
licensed to operate in Salford? There was no limit and this was left principally to 
market forces, similarly the City Council had no powers over stipulating which hours 
and where they operated.

RESOLVED: (1) THAT the contents of the presentation be noted.

(2) THAT satisfaction be expressed at the current licensing policy, its 
operation and ongoing enforcement.

6. NEW GREATER MANCHESTER WASTE CONTRACT UPDATE

David Seager gave a presentation which provided an update on progress with the 
procurement process for the new Greater Manchester Waste Disposal contract and 
which focussed on the following issues/themes:-

 GMWDA (Greater Manchester Waste Disposal Authority)
 Interim contract performance
 Procurement of new contract
 Procurement of bio waste
 Assurance process
 Contract award

It was indicated a further more detailed update would be provided at a future 
meeting, once announcements regarding the award of the contract had been made.

Members raised issues and commented on, and noted them, as follows:-

(a) Would UK leaving the European Union have an impact on recycling? At the 
moment this was uncertain and was dependent on the terms of departure.

(b) Key to recycling was having a suitable end market for waste.

RESOLVED: THAT the update be noted.

7. WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20

Members gave consideration to the Panel’s suggested Work Programme for 
2019/20. 

RESOLVED: THAT the Panel’s Work Programme 2019/20 as now submitted, be 
approved subject to the incorporation of the following matters:-

 18th March 2019 - Transformation Programme Regulatory Services also to 
include Waste Collection Teams “In Cab” Technology Update  

 20th May 2019 
o Proposed new GMP Divisional Structure 
o GM Waste Management Contract Update
o Business Plan 2018/19 end of year and year ahead

Page 4



 17th June 2019 - Progress on the development/introduction of a “”Street 
Charter” policy including focus on disabled accessibility in parks

8. DATE OF NEXT MEETING

It was noted that the next meeting of the Panel would be held on Monday, 18th

March, 2019, commencing at 2.00 pm.

9. COUNCILLOR CHARLIE MCINTYRE

It was reported this would be the last meeting of the Panel Councillor Charlie 
McIntyre would be attending, prior to him taking up the position of Ceremonial Mayor 
in 2019/20. Best wishes were extended to him during his term of office as ceremonial 
Mayor and thanks for his services to the Panel, together with the hope he would 
return as member in May 2020.

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Part 1 - Open to the Public ITEM NO.

BRIEFING NOTE 

TO 

THE COMMUNITY AND NEIGHBOURHOODS SCRUTINY PANEL
ON 

Monday 18th March 2019

TITLE: Greater Manchester Plastic Pledge 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
The Panel is requested to note the report and the agreement of the Lead Member for 
Environment and Community Safety to the City Council signing the Greater 
Manchester (GM) plastic pledge.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

Greater Manchester Combined Authority has launched a plastic free campaign, with 
an ambition to be plastic free by the end of 2020. Salford as one of ten local 
authorities in GM, is requested to sign the pledge, to work towards this ambition.  

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

KEY DECISION: NO

DETAILS:

Greater Manchester Combined Authority has an ambition to make Greater 
Manchester one of the greenest city regions in Europe. Plastic Free GM is one 
campaign within a range of other actions in its efforts to lower our city-regions carbon 
footprint, and move towards carbon neutrality. Greater Manchester also aims to 
reduce energy use, pollution, and becoming a more sustainable place to work, live 
and visit.

GMCA is setting its businesses, organisations, residents, workers and visitors a 
challenge.

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



2

A plastic pledge campaign will help stamp out avoidable single-use plastics and 
make a positive change to our city-region. 

Salford, together with all 10 GM authorities has been asked to ‘sign the pledge’ and 
work together to make more sustainable choices about the products we use, the way 
we work, and the way we live our lives.

By signing the pledge, GMCA will send support and information needed to start 
reducing our avoidable single-use plastic use and helping Greater Manchester go 
plastic free by the end of 2020.

GM are also asking educational establishments, the tourism and hospitality sector, 
businesses and residents in Greater Manchester to sign the same pledge.

By signing the pledge, Plastic Free GM will use the City Council log on the GM 
website to show we have pledged our support. 

More details are available by visiting the web site: https://plasticfreegm.com/sign-up/

To date Bury and Trafford have signed the Pledge and all of the other 7 are 
proposing to do so. There has been a request to sign before the end of March 2019.   

At his briefing held on 11th March 2019, the Lead Member for Environment and 
Community Safety gave his approval to sign the pledge. A GM operational waste 
officer group is in place, which the Head of Parks and Streetscene services 
represents Salford at, and Plastic Pledge will be added as a standing agenda item, to 
share ideas and approaches consistently across GM. It is also being suggested to 
Corporate Management Team that a cross Council working group be formed and 
asked to lead on this, as clearly this is a cross council issue. It may be that this could 
be a role for one of Salford Squads!

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Carbon Reduction 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: N/A

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Low

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: None  

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: None to signing of the pledge 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: 

None to signing the pledge.

Page 8

https://plasticfreegm.com/sign-up/


3

Consideration will need to be given to the potential impact on changes to our tender 
documentation, evaluation criteria / selection scoring and contracts.  In addition 
Commissioners and Contract Managers will be responsible for ensuring suppliers are 
delivering against any commitment promised or contractual terms agreed.

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: Marketing and Communications, 
Procurement 

CONTACT OFFICER: David Seager TEL NO: x1115

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: All

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel

Work Programme 2018/19 

SCHEDULE OF COMMITTEE DATES & AGENDA ITEMS

Date Topic/Action Responsible officer(s)

18th March 2019 Transformation Programme Regulatory Services - including Waste Collection 
Teams “In Cab” Technology Update  (previously submitted 19/11/18)
 - Update/Progress

Greater Manchester Integrated Place (to be re-scheduled)

Peter Openshaw

Jacquie Russell

April 2019 No Meeting run up to local elections

20th May 2019 Budget 2018/2019 Monitoring (Quarterly)

Salford Community Safety Strategy - Performance/Update

Proposed new GMP Divisional Structure 

GM Waste Management Contract Update

Business Plan 2018/19 end of year and year ahead

Paul Hutchings

Jeanette Staley

GMP

David Seager

Sarah Ashurst

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 7



 
Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel

Work Programme 2018/19 

17th June 2019 Salford Community Leisure (SCL) Impact Report 

Progress on the development/introduction of a “”Street Charter” policy (initially 
considered 19/11/18) including focus on disabled accessibility in parks

Sam Sandford / Steve 
Hassall

Dave Seager

22nd July 2019 Budget 2019/2020 Monitoring (Quarterly) Paul Hutchings

August 2019 No Meeting - Recess

16th September 2019

21st October 2019 Budget 2019/2020 Monitoring (Quarterly) Paul Hutchings

18th November 2019 Impact of the introduction of the Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities 
Involving Animals) (England) Regulations 2018 Update (previously submitted 
1911/18)

December 2019 No Meeting - Christmas

20th January 2020 Salford City Council’s Emergency Planning and Business Community 
Approach Update (previously considered 21/1/19)

Jeanette Staley

P
age 12



 
Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel

Work Programme 2018/19 

ABEYANCE LIST

Continuing evaluation of additional £300,000 street cleaning initiatives funded through 2017/18 Budget 
(update provided to October 2018 meeting)  
Associated issues to be considered separately, or in conjunction with:-

 Tacking environmental crime; powers available and successes achieved
 Greenspace Strategy
 Restoration/revitalisation or alternative use of disused outdoor sports spaces (eg tennis courts) 

David Seager / David 
Robinson / John 
Wooderson

Protocol for Managing Unauthorised Encampments - current legislation and requirements of local 
authorities (information provided further consideration by Panel required to be confirmed)

Stephen Kearney/
Peter Openshaw

P
age 13



 
Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel

Work Programme 2018/19 

Portfolio of the Board Membership

1. Community Safety 
2. Communities and Neighbourhoods 
3. Regulatory Services (including Environmental Health, Trading 
Standards, Licensing) 
4. Operational Services (including Citywide, bereavement, 
operational transport, refuse and street cleansing, parks 
management, grounds maintenance) 
5. Salford Community Leisure Client 
6. Cultural strategy 
7. to be the designated Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee 
8. To scrutinise the council’s business plan and budget in this 
functional area.

Councillor Mullen (Chair)
Councillor Karen Garrido (Deputy Chair)
Councillor Fletcher
Councillor Hesling
Councillor Hunt
Councillor McCusker
Councillor McIntyre
Councillor Ryan
Councillor Turner
Councillor Joan Walsh
Councillor Warner
Councillor Wheeler

P
age 14



 
Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel

Work Programme 2018/19 
COMMUNITY AND NEIGHBOURHOODS SCRUTINY PANEL - RESPONSES/UPDATES TO RECOMMENDATIONS 

TOPIC AND RECOMMENDATIONS UPDATE

1. 15 October 2018 - Waste and Recycling Management 

Request  for the Panel to be provided with the following –

 data on recycling rates, ideally on an electoral ward basis, or if this is not 
possible by collection day.

 data on fly tipping rates on an electoral ward basis, both pre and post 
the introduction of the three weekly domestic waste collection service.

 a demonstration of the “in cab” recording and monitoring technology, 
used by the teams undertaking the weekly domestic waste collection 
service.

Updates in respect of the three bullet points 
detailed were provided and considered at the 
19th November 2018 meeting.

2 15 October 2018 - Budget Monitoring (Salford Innovation Park)

Request for information with regard to progress with the Salford Innovation 
Park achieving current income targets. 

Requested update submitted to meeting on 21st 
January 2019 for consideration. (This matter 
primarily lies within the remit of the Growth and 
Prosperity Scrutiny Panel and if any further 
actions are deemed necessary the Panel may 
feel it more appropriate to refer them there)

P
age 15



 
Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel

Work Programme 2018/19 

3. 19 November 2018 - Waste Collection Teams “In Cab” Technology

The potential for income generation, further financial savings and other 
possible efficiencies, arising from the introduction of the new technology and 
the resulting information collected be encouraged and identified as part of 
continuing evaluation.

Further update be provided to the panel on progress with the introduction of the 
technology, its development, resulting benefits, potential for improvement and 
any other relevant issues.

Ongoing

Provisionally scheduled for June 2019 meeting.

4. 19 November 2018 - Waste Collection Rates/Fly-Tipping Incidents Update 

In recognition as its importance as a tool in combating fly-tipping, the Lead 
Member for Environment and Community Safety be requested to continue with 
current separate representations at a Greater Manchester level to (a) the Home 
Office requesting that funds raised through the Proceeds of Crime Act (POCA) 
2002 could be used by local authorities for the provision of CCTV

The Lead Member for Environment and Community Safety to continue with 
representations H.M. Courts Service requesting the penalties for fly-tipping and 
environmental crime are proportionate with both the individual offence and the 
time and cost of the investigations into them, which led to a successful 
prosecution.

Ongoing - Panel to be updated on progress as 
necessary

Ongoing - Panel to be updated on progress as 
necessary

P
age 16



 
Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel

Work Programme 2018/19 

5. 19 November 2018 - Street Charter (Pavement and Public Areas Disabled 
Access)

Update to be provided on the creation of a “Street Charter” Ongoing - Panel to be updated on progress in 
due course as Charter is developed

6. 19 November 2018 - Licensing Arrangements for Animal Based Businesses

Further update to be provided detailing activity and arising issues as result of 
the introduction of the Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving 
Animals) (England) Regulations 2018.

Provisionally scheduled for November 2019 
meeting.

7. 21 January 2019 - Budget 2018/19 Monitoring 

Issues with regard to the performance and management of the Salford 
University Business Park (SUBP) to be referred to the Growth and Prosperity 
Scrutiny Panel for consideration.

Further information/clarification sought in relation miscellaneous 
projects/schemes detailed within the Budget 2018/19

Referred to Growth and Prosperity Scrutiny 
Panel

Requested information circulated to members 
on 13 February 2019.

8. 18 February 2019 - Library Implementation Plan 2017/18

Miscellaneous information sought with regard to various aspects of the Plan Requested information circulated to members 
on 13 March 2019.

P
age 17



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of meeting held on 18 March 2019 and matters arising
	6 Greater Manchester Plastic Pledge
	7 Work Programme 2019/20

